
  

 

 
 

138 S. Brandon St.  Fallbrook CA 92028  760-731-9187 

 

 

 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

REGULAR BOARD  MEETING 

 
 

WEDNESDAY 
DECEMBER 13, 2017 

 
6:00 PM 

 
AT 

 
FPUD 

FALLBROOK PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT 
990 EAST MISSION ROAD  
FALLBROOK, CA 92028 



AGENDA 
FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
Wednesday, December 13, 2017, 6:00 p.m. 

Fallbrook Public Utilities District, 990 E. Mission Rd., Fallbrook 
 
A. CALL MEETING TO ORDER – PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 A1. Annual Organizational Meeting:  Election of Officers of the Board 
 A2. Commencement of Regular Monthly Meeting – Newly Elected President 
 
B. ADDITIONS TO  AGENDA 

Pursuant  to the Brown Act, additions to the Agenda as posted are exceptional, and expressly limited to three specific 
situations, as set forth in Government Code 54954.2(b): (1) an “emergency” as determined by majority vote of the 
board; (2) a 2/3 vote of the board finding that an item requires immediate action – and the need for this action arose in 
time after the agenda was posted or (3) the item was continued from an earlier  meeting (no more than 5 days earlier), 
at which time the item was validly posted on the agenda of the earlier meeting. 

 
C. BOARD MEMBER AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Opportunity for board members and citizens to speak on items of interest within subject matter jurisdiction of the 
District.  For the record, please state your name.  “Request to speak” cards should be filled out in advance and 
presented to the Board President or the recording secretary.  The Board has a policy limiting any speaker to not more 
than five minutes. 

 
D. CONSENT ITEMS 
 D1. Approval of October 2017 Financial Statements 
 D2. Minutes of November 1, 2017 Finance Committee Meeting 
 D3. Minutes of November 8, 2017 Regular Board Meeting 
 
E. REPORTS 

E1. Finance Committee – Committee of the Whole, Chair: Director Mroz 
E2. Gov’t/Public Relation/Community Relations Committee – Directors Salmon and 

Tinker 
E3. Facilities/Strategic Planning Committee – Directors Abbott and Salmon 
E4. Executive Director – Bobbi Palmer 
E5. General Counsel – Blaise Jackson 

 
F. DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEMS 

F1. Retention Items – Authorization to Destroy Outdated Records (Gov Code 34090, 
Per Board Resolution 393) 

 F2. CHS – Requested Acknowledgement and Release of Unnecessary Repairs 
 F3. Urgent Care Services Proposals Received 
 
G. ITEMS FOR SUBSEQUENT MEETINGS 
 G1. Other Director/Staff discussion items 
  G1a. Item(s) for future board agendas  
  G1b. Announcements of upcoming events 

• NCCCHI meeting – 1st Wednesday, January 3, 2018, 2:00-3:00pm  

• Finance Committee meeting – 1st Wednesday, January 3, 2018, 5:00pm, 
Fallbrook Regional Health District Board Room, 138 S. Brandon Rd. 

• Woman of Wellness – Thursday, January 4, 2018, 6pm – Fallbrook 

Library 

Page 1 of 102



• Community Collaborative for Health & Wellness Committee (CCH&W) 

meeting Monday, January 15, 2018, 9:00-10:30am, Fallbrook Public 

Utility District Board Room 

G2. Next Regular Board meeting – Wednesday, January 10, 2018, Fallbrook Public 
Utility District Board Room 

 
H. CLOSED SESSION 

H1. Personnel Matters Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957 – Evaluation of 
Executive Director 

 
I. RETURN TO OPEN SESSION 
 
J. ADJOURNMENT 
 
NOTE:  This agenda posted at the Fallbrook Regional Health District Administration 
Office on Friday, December 8, 2017. The American with Disabilities Act provides that no 
qualified individual with a disability shall be excluded from participation in, or denied the 
benefits of District business.  If you need assistance to participate in this meeting, please 
contact the District office 24 hours prior to the meeting at 760-731-9187. 

 

 

Page 2 of 102



CONSENT ITEMS 

 

Page 3 of 102



 
 

AGENDA 
FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT 

FINANCE COMMITTEE 
Wednesday, December 6, 2017 at 5:00 P.M. 

Board Conference Room, 138 S. Brandon Rd., Fallbrook CA 92028 
 
Committee Members: Finance Committee of the Whole, Barbara Mroz, Chair and Bill Leach, Co-chair 

Staff Members: Executive Director Bobbi Palmer and Administrative Assistant Linda Bannerman 

Accountant: Kathy Bogle 

Bookkeeper: Wendy Lyon 

 

1. Call to Order/Roll Call 

2. Public Comments 

3. RFPs for Urgent Care Services 

a. Interview(s) based on proposals received on November 30, 2017 

4. Review of Financial Statements for October 2017 

1) Balance Sheet Comparison of October – September 

2) Income Statement for October 2017 and fiscal year to date 

3) Profit & Loss Actual vs Budget – October 

4) Profit & Loss Budget Overview July 2016 – June 2017 

5) LAIF Report  

6) CalTrust  

7) Property Tax Revenue – fiscal year to date 

8) Check Detail as of October 2017 

5. Adjournment 

 

I certify that on November 30, 2017, I posted a copy of the foregoing agenda near the regular meeting place of the 

Board of Directors of Fallbrook Regional Health District, said time being at least 72 hours in advance of the meeting of 

the Finance Committee. 

 

 

                      Board Secretary/Clerk 

Page 4 of 102



Page 5 of 102



Page 6 of 102



Page 7 of 102



Page 8 of 102



Page 9 of 102



Page 10 of 102



TOTAL
Jul 17 Aug 17 Sep 17 Oct 17 Nov 17 Dec 17 Jan 18 Feb 18 Mar 18 Apr 18 May 18 Jun 18 Jul '17 - Jun 18

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

400. · District
402 · Property tax revenue 15,065 29,617 9,576 25,343 50,132 600,620 297,496 63,789 458,124 214,331 14,470 21,437 1,800,000
403 · Interest / Dividends 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 60,000

Total 400. · District 20,065 34,617 14,576 30,343 55,132 605,620 302,496 68,789 463,124 219,331 19,470 26,437 1,860,000

450. · Properties
460 · Lease Income

460.01 · A+ Urgent Care 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 57,600

Total 460 · Lease Income 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 57,600

Total 450. · Properties 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 57,600

Total Income 24,865 39,417 19,376 35,143 59,932 610,420 307,296 73,589 467,924 224,131 24,270 31,237 1,917,600

Gross Profit 24,865 39,417 19,376 35,143 59,932 610,420 307,296 73,589 467,924 224,131 24,270 31,237 1,917,600

Expense
500 · Administrative Expenses

500.36 · Accrued Vacation & Sick Leave 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 20,700 20,700
500.10 · Salaries 19,408 20,665 19,928 22,222 22,222 22,222 22,222 22,222 22,222 22,222 22,222 22,222 260,000
500.12 · Payroll Taxes 1,327 1,455 1,381 1,760 1,760 1,760 1,760 1,760 1,760 1,760 1,760 1,760 20,000
500.14 · W/C Insurance 152 152 152 152 152 152 152 152 152 152 152 152 1,825
500.15 · Employee Health & Welfare 1,042 1,042 1,042 1,042 1,042 1,042 1,042 1,042 1,042 1,042 1,042 1,042 12,500
500.16 · Board Stipends 1,300 1,700 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 18,000
500.17 · Education & Conferences 1,458 1,458 1,458 1,458 1,458 1,458 1,458 1,458 1,458 1,458 1,458 1,458 17,500
500.18 · Dues & Subscriptions 8,471 667 0 0 5,272 110 880 0 0 100 0 0 15,500
500.19 · Insurance - General 2,083 2,083 2,083 2,083 2,083 2,083 2,083 2,083 2,083 2,083 2,083 2,083 25,000
500.20 · Independent Accounting Services 850 850 850 850 850 850 850 850 850 850 850 850 10,200
500.21 · Annual Independent Audit 0 8,600 0 0 0 0 8,600
500.23 · General Counsel 7,500 7,500 7,500 7,500 7,500 7,500 7,500 7,500 7,500 7,500 7,500 7,500 90,000
500.25 · Office Expense

01 · Communications 333 333 333 333 333 333 333 333 333 333 333 333 4,000
02 · I.T. and Website services 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 6,000
03 · Refreshments 542 542 542 542 542 542 542 542 542 542 542 542 6,500
04 · Office Expenses 1,083 1,083 1,083 1,083 1,083 1,083 1,083 1,083 1,083 1,083 1,083 1,083 13,000
06 · Independent Contract Services 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 60,000

Total 500.25 · Office Expense 7,458 7,458 7,458 7,458 7,458 7,458 7,458 7,458 7,458 7,458 7,458 7,458 89,500

500.27 · Depreciation 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 1,200
500.29 · Dist Promotions & Publications 1,833 1,833 1,833 1,833 1,833 1,833 1,833 1,833 1,833 1,833 1,833 1,833 22,000
500.32 · Consultant Fees 11,063 11,063 11,063 11,063 11,063 11,063 11,063 11,063 11,063 11,063 11,063 11,063 132,750
500.33 · Copier Lease 833 833 833 833 833 833 833 833 833 833 833 833 10,000
500.45 · Community Garden 0 0 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 10,000

Total 500 · Administrative Expenses 64,880 67,460 58,182 60,855 66,127 60,965 61,735 60,855 60,855 60,955 60,855 81,555 765,275

590 · Management & Maintenance
590.02 · Gas & Electric 625 625 625 625 625 625 625 625 625 625 625 625 7,500
590.03 · Water 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 6,000
590.04 · Waste Management 71 0 71 0 71 0 71 0 72 0 70 0 425
590.05 · Security 1,424 1,416 1,416 1,416 1,416 1,416 1,416 1,416 1,416 1,416 1,416 1,416 17,000
590.06 · Landscape - Grounds Environment 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 12,000
590.07 · Custodial Services 587 583 583 583 583 583 583 583 583 583 583 583 7,000
590.08 · Elevator 174 166 166 166 166 166 166 166 166 166 166 166 2,000
590.09 · Vehicle Expenses 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 300
590.10 · Maintenance Services & Repairs 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 3,600
590.11 · Medical Records Store & Service 3,417 3,417 3,417 3,417 3,417 3,417 3,417 3,417 3,417 3,417 3,417 3,417 41,000
590.12 · Fire Alarm System 183 183 183 183 183 183 183 183 183 183 183 183 2,200
590.13 · Renovations / Improvements 0 0 0 12,500 12,500 12,500 12,500 0 0 0 0 0 50,000

Total 590 · Management & Maintenance 8,306 8,215 8,286 20,715 20,786 20,715 20,786 8,215 8,286 8,215 8,284 8,215 149,025

FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT
Profit & Loss Budget Overview 2017 - 2018

July 2017 through June 2018

Page 11 of 102

LindaB
Typewritten Text
Report 4



TOTAL
Jul 17 Aug 17 Sep 17 Oct 17 Nov 17 Dec 17 Jan 18 Feb 18 Mar 18 Apr 18 May 18 Jun 18 Jul '17 - Jun 18

600 · Community Health Contracts
600.02 · Fbk Citizens Crime Prevention 2,500 0 0 0 2,500 0 0 2,500 0 0 2,500 0 10,000
600.58 · Michelle's Place 6,000 0 0 0 6,000 0 0 6,000 0 0 6,000 0 24,000
600.54 · Healthy Adventures Foundation 2,250 0 0 0 2,250 0 0 2,250 0 0 2,250 0 9,000
600.53 · Jeremiah's  Ranch 3,688 0 0 0 3,688 0 0 3,688 0 0 3,688 0 14,750
600.04 · Boys & Girls Club 20,000 0 0 0 10,000 0 0 10,000 0 0 10,000 0 50,000
600.07 · Fbk Senior Citizens Srvc Club 31,350 0 0 0 18,750 0 0 18,750 0 0 18,750 0 87,600
600.08 · Fallbrook Smiles Project 17,875 0 0 0 17,875 0 0 17,875 0 0 17,875 0 71,500
600.11 · Palomar Family Counseling Srvc 19,750 0 0 0 19,750 0 0 19,750 0 0 19,750 0 79,000
600.14 · Fbk Family Health Center 25,000 0 0 0 25,000 0 0 25,000 0 0 25,000 0 100,000
600.17 · Foundation for Senior Care 52,279 0 0 0 52,278 0 0 52,278 0 0 52,278 0 209,113
600.18 · Fallbrook Food Pantry 18,000 0 0 0 18,000 0 0 18,000 0 0 18,000 0 72,000
600.19 · Live Oak Park Coalition 10,000 0 0 0 10,000 0 0 10,000 0 0 10,000 0 40,000
600.33 · REINS Therapeutic Prgm 16,250 0 0 0 16,250 0 0 16,250 0 0 16,250 0 65,000
600.37 · Trauma Intervention Prgm of SD 2,250 0 0 0 2,250 0 0 2,250 0 0 2,250 0 9,000
600.46 · Mental Health Systems, Inc. 2,312 0 0 0 2,312 0 0 2,312 0 0 2,312 0 9,249
600.48 · UCSD Eye Mobile for Children 0 0 0 0 2,500 0 0 3,000 0 0 3,000 0 8,500

Total 600 · Community Health Contracts 229,504 0 0 0 209,403 0 0 209,903 0 0 209,903 0 858,712

Total Expense 302,690 75,675 66,468 81,570 296,315 81,680 82,521 278,972 69,141 69,170 279,042 89,770 1,773,012

Net Ordinary Income (277,825) (36,258) (47,092) (46,427) (236,383) 528,740 224,776 (205,383) 398,783 154,962 (254,772) (58,533) 144,588

Net Income (277,825) (36,258) (47,092) (46,427) (236,383) 528,740 224,776 (205,383) 398,783 154,962 (254,772) (58,533) 144,588

FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT
Profit & Loss Budget Overview 2017 - 2018

July 2017 through June 2018

Page 12 of 102

LindaB
Typewritten Text
Report 4



Page 13 of 102

LindaB
Typewritten Text
Report 5



Page 14 of 102

LindaB
Typewritten Text
Report 6



Page 15 of 102



Page 16 of 102



Page 17 of 102



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

FALLBROOK REGIONAL  

HEATH DISTRICT 

 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

JUNE 30, 2017 

Page 18 of 102



FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT 
 

Financial Statements 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017 
 

 

Table of Contents 

 

   Page  

 

Independent Auditor’s Report ...................................................................................................... 1-2 

 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis – 

  Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited) ................................................................... 3-9 

 

Financial Statements 

 

Statement of Net Position ............................................................................................................ 10 

 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position ................................................ 11 

 

Statement of Cash Flows ............................................................................................................. 12 

 

Notes to the Financial Statements ................................................................................................ 13-22 

Page 19 of 102



 

1 

 
 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

 

To the Board of Directors 

of the Fallbrook Regional Health District 

Fallbrook, California 

 

Report on Financial Statements 

 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Fallbrook Regional Health District 

(the  “District”), which comprise the statement of net position as of June 30, 2017, and the related 

statements  of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position and cash flows for the year then 

ended, and the related notes to the financial statements. 

 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 

accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 

includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation 

and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 

fraud or error. 

 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 

conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 

America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 

about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 

in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 

assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 

error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s 

preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that 

are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 

effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also 

includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 

significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation 

of the financial statements.  We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

 

Page 20 of 102



 

2 

To the Board of Directors 

of the Fallbrook Regional Health District 

Fallbrook, California 

 

Opinion 

 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 

respective financial position of the District, as of June 30, 2017, and the respective changes in 

financial position and cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting 

principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

 

Other Matters 

 

Required Supplementary Information 

 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis on pages 3 through 9 be presented to supplement the 

financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the financial statements, is required by 

the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial 

reporting for placing the financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical 

context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the Required Supplementary Information in 

accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which 

consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing 

the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the financial 

statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the financial statements. We do not 

express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do 

not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

 

Fechter & Company  

Certified Public Accountants 

 

 

 

 

Sacramento, California 

October 11, 2017 

Page 21 of 102



FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT 
 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017 
 
 

3 

The Fallbrook Regional Health District (District) has issued its financial statements for the fiscal year 

ended June 30, 2017 in conformity with the format prescribed by the provisions of Government 

Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 34 (GASB 34). This report, Management’s Discussion 

and Analysis, is an overview of the financial activities for the fiscal year and is an integral part of the 

accompanying Basic Financial Statements. 

 

ACCOUNTING METHOD 

 

The District’s operations are accounted for as an Enterprise Fund. Enterprise Funds are used by 

government agencies to account for operations which are financed and managed in a similar manner 

to private business enterprises, where the costs and expenses (including depreciation) of providing 

services to the public on a continuing basis are recovered primarily through user charges. The 

District receives property tax revenues. The District’s revenues and expenses are recognized on a full 

accrual basis; revenues are recognized in the period incurred.  All assets and liabilities associated 

with the activity of the enterprise are included on the Statement of Net Position. 

 

THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

The District has only one fund, therefore the Basic Financial Statements do not reflect the activities 

of multiple funds. The Basic Financial Statements include the Statement of Net Position, Statement 

of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position (Income Statement), and Statement of Cash 

Flows. Together with this report, the Basic Financial Statements provide information about the 

significant events, assumptions, and decisions resulting in the financial performance reflected in 

those statements. . 

 

The Statement of Net Position provides information regarding the financial position of the District, 

including its capital assets and debts. 

 

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position (Income Statement) provides 

information regarding the revenues received by the District, and the expenses incurred in carrying out 

the District’s programs. The ultimate focus of the income statement is the balance of effective current 

use of funds and planning for the future, as reflected by the amount of net income generated for the 

fiscal year. 

 

The Statement of Cash Flows provides information regarding the sources and uses of the cash which 

flowed into and out of the District as a result of its operations and financing decisions. 

 

FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES & FISCAL YEAR 2017 HIGHLIGHTS 

 

Statement of Net Position 

 

The District is a government entity operating under the Local Health Care District Law.  In 1950, the 

residents of the area voted to establish, build, and operate Fallbrook Hospital. In 1971, the hospital 

was enlarged to its present 47-bed capacity. 

 

Page 22 of 102



FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT 
 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017 
 
 

4 

Since November 1998, the hospital has been leased under a 30-year agreement to Community Health 

Systems (CHS). The transaction was approved overwhelmingly by over 95% of District voters.  A 

condensed version of the Statement of Net Position is presented in Table A below and the changes 

which occurred between Fiscal Year ended 2017 and 2016. 
 

TABLE A 
 

 2017  2016  Change 

Assets:         

Cash and investments $ 6,789,887  $ 6,319,945  $ 469,942 

All other assets  5,072,913   5,208,356   (135,443) 

 Total Assets  11,862,800   11,528,301   334,499 

         

Liabilities:         

Current liabilities  94,177   59,142   (35,035) 

Long-term liabilities  20,687   4,457   (16,230) 

 Total Liabilities  114,864   63,599   (51,265) 

         

Net Position:         

Net investment in capital assets  292,910   291,601   1,309 

Unrestricted  11,455,026   11,173,101   281,925 

 Total Net Position $ 11,747,936  $ 11,464,702  $ 283,234 

 

The $283,234 increase in Total Net Position reflects the change in net position for the year. 

 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 

 

The District’s business is comprised of three major segments: 

 

• Grant Program – The District administers a grant program, giving a portion of the 

District’s annual property tax revenues to non-profit health-related programs serving 

residents of the Fallbrook, Bonsall, Rainbow, and De Luz areas of northern San Diego 

County. 

 

• Community Health Fair – The purpose of the Fair is to provide health screenings and 

access to information to residents that are readily accessible in the District for the entire 

community. 

 

• Community Collaboratives – Representatives of the District’s healthcare organizations 

and interested community members meet to network their programs, and identify, 

develop, and initiate District sponsored health related community programs and address 

concerns. Additional education opportunity for guest presentations relative to health, 

health services and conditions; ranging in scope from Aids and Alzheimer’s to Suicide, 

Drug Abuse, and Legislative issues impacting health and well-being. 

 

Page 23 of 102



FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT 
 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017 
 
 

5 

Table B, below, is a condensed version of the Income Statement; it summarizes the District’s revenue 

and expenses, and compares Fiscal Year 2017 results to Fiscal Year 2016. 
 

TABLE B 

 

 2017  2016  Change 

Revenues:         

Property tax revenue $ 1,793,446  $ 1,693,339  $ 100,107 

 Total Revenues  1,793,446   1,693,339   100,107 

         

Expenses:         

Community healthcare programs  708,686   643,231   (65,455) 

Direct care services  99,000   294,000   195,000 

Administrative services  360,580   339,490   (21,090) 

Salaries and benefits  273,976   249,556   (24,420) 

Management and maintenance  279,284   303,453   24,169 

Depreciation  564   1,661   1,097 

 Total Expenses  1,722,090   1,831,391   109,301 

         

Operating Income  71,356   (138,052)   209,408 

         

Non-Operating Income (Expenses):         

Other income  211,878   364,362   (152,484) 

Other expenses  -   -   - 

Total Non-Operating Income  211,878   364,362   (152,484) 

         

 Change in Net Position $ 283,234  $ 226,310  $ 56,924 

 

Property taxes drive the District’s operations and are its primary source of revenues. The increase of 

$100,107 in property taxes reflects the continuing turnaround in the real estate market and the 

general state of the economy within the District’s service area. 

 

Total non-operating income decreased by $152,484 due to the decrease in revenues relating to the 

building sale, as well as the interest earnings available from investments set aside by the District. The 

subsidy for Direct Care Services was decreased in this fiscal year, with a drop of $195,000 over the 

previous year. 

 

The Grant Allocation increased by $65,455 because the amounts requested and provided through the 

grant process varies from year to year. 

 

Salaries and benefits increased by $26,060 due to the change of staff, including a new Executive 

Director, as the District’s role and responsibilities in the community have changed. 

 

Administrative services reflect an overall increase of $21,090.  There was a decrease to general 

counsel in the amount of $43,348.  Independent contract services increased by $22,923, due to a 

Page 24 of 102



FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT 
 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017 
 
 

6 

change in accounting assistance.  Consulting fees increased by $30,961, due to community 

engagement services.  The amount charged for California mandated reimbursement was reduced by 

$13,445.  Stipends were reduced by $4,600, and I.T. and web services reduced by $7,688, and office 

expense was reduced by $5,893. 

 

Direct Care Services, which was the agreement to assist the A+ Urgent Care facility for a period of 

time, in order to provide the Community with a medical facility to partially replace the hospital 

services, was in the amount of $99,000. 

 

CAPITAL ASSETS 

 

At June 30, 2017, the District had $310,763 in capital assets and $19,162 accumulated depreciation 

resulting in $291,601 net capital assets. 

 

A summary of the activity and balances in capital assets is presented in Table C below. 

 

TABLE C 

 

 

Balance 

July 1, 

2016  Additions  Deletions 

   

Balance 

June 30, 2017 

Capital assets, 

depreciable: 

           

Buildings and improvements $ 291,240  $ -  $ -  $ 291,240 

Furniture and fixtures  2,375   -   -   2,375 

Equipment  17,148   126   -   17,274 

 Subtotal  310,763   126   -   310,889 

            

Accumulated depreciation  (19,162)   (1,660)   -   (20,822) 

            

Capital Assets, Net $ 291,601  $ (1,534)  $ -  $ 290,067 

 

DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

 

The District has no debt. 

 

ECONOMIC OUTLOOK 

 

The Fiscal Year 2016/2017 budget reflects a minimal increase in revenues, as property values/taxes 

are not anticipated to change much. Interest income is projected to increase, as funds have been 

received through the sale of the hospital building.  Overhead is expected to remain about the same in 

the coming fiscal year. Capital expenditures are budgeted at $0. 

 

 

   

Page 25 of 102



FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT 
 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017 
 
 

7 

MAJOR INITIATIVES 

 

COMMUNITY HEALTHCARE PROGRAMS 2016-2017 

 

Throughout fiscal year 2016-2017, the District sponsored and/or collaborated with local agencies and 

providers to identify, develop, support and/or deliver no-cost programs for prevention, education, 

treatment or services for the health and well-being of the residents of the community. Highlights of 

the Community Healthcare Programs were: 

 

 The Community Collaborative Committee met each month for networking, identifying, 

assessing healthcare concerns and issues, and gaining information and resources to 

facilitate access to healthcare, and health promoting programs and services. 

 

 Programs and events co-sponsored by the District also included the annual Prostate 

Screening (PSA) event, the Woman of Wellness, “WOW” educational monthly meeting 

program, and the annual Health and Fitness Fair.  

 

2016-2017 Grant Program 

 

The biggest Community Healthcare Program undertaken each year by FHD is the Grant Program. 

Only qualified, nonprofit, 501(c)(3), agencies may apply. Those who are awarded funding must meet 

strict criteria and provide comprehensive financial and service reports periodically throughout the 

grant year. 

 

The District’s focus:  Prevention, Education, Treatment, and Ancillary Services 

 

 Amount requested:  $809,069  

 Amount funded:  $708,686  

 Twenty-one grants awarded:  

 7 Youth programs  

 4 Seniors  

 10 All ages  

 

YOUTH 

 

 Funding for two (2) health and wellness after-school programs provided throughout the 

elementary and middle school districts. 

 Funding for children and youth who do not qualify for Medi-Cal or other public services 

who suffer from severe mental health disorders. 

 Funding to address social and emotional needs of students with Asperger’s Syndrome 

through a designated staff and center. 

 Funding to continue a preschool ophthalmic screening and eye care program; inclusive of 

glasses and/or need treatment and follow-up care for children ages 2 to 6 years. 

 Funding to engage youth in proactive prevention of access to and use of alcohol and 

drugs; and to bring awareness to youth, parents, educators and law enforcement. 

Page 26 of 102



FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT 
 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017 
 
 

8 

 Funding to provide a K-12 Safety Program to educate and inspire students to make life-

saving choices regarding drugs and alcohol; car, bicycle, water safety and violence. 

 

SENIORS 

 

 Funding to evaluate and assist senior citizens with healthcare and home safety 

management through in home evaluations, safety checks and resource availability as well 

as assessments to help guide seniors to keep them living at home, independently. 

 Funding to provide a program for senior and disabled residents and their caregivers that 

provides a secure and safe environment for activities and respite. 

 Funding to provide senior and disabled citizens free transportation to medical and dental 

appointments, physical therapy, grocery stores and pharmacies which assists also in 

maintain budgets to ensure that medical care and food are accessible priorities. 

 Funding to provide nutrition to needy seniors who have mobility and activities of daily 

living challenges through a home delivered meal program. Program through which needs 

can be assessed and referral to support programs can be made as identified. 

 Volunteers dispatched through the 911 system at request of emergency responders. 

 

ALL AGES 

 

 Funding  to  increase  access  to  psychiatric  care  for  persons  afflicted  with  biological  

brain disorders, behavioral/mental conditions that require medication and/or counseling 

treatment. 

 Funding to provide a wide range of primary care, dental care and prevention services to 

underserved person of the District population. 

 

 Funding to support the vision of nutritionally balanced supplemental food to those whose 

income is below the Federal guideline for poverty level. 

 Funding to recruit, train, monitor and schedule the volunteer base that provides assistance 

with over 200 weekly therapy sessions for children and adults; also to fund Speech 

Therapy to increase receptive and expressive communication capabilities. 

 Funding to facilitate a nutrition/diabetes/health education program at the community 

clinic and to continue health education and diabetes screening services in district schools 

as well as for seniors. 

 Funding to continue and to expand dental care program for restorative and preventive 

services; and to screen children in local schools for existing or potential decay. 

 Funding to continue development and implementation of community outreach to 

establish appropriate housing and support programs to provide a quality, safe living 

environment for special needs citizens. 

 Funding to support courier program of transportation of District residents to healthcare 

provider appointments. Only program that will take persons to appointments out of the 

immediate Fallbrook community. 

 Funding to facilitate Homecare Services for low and moderate income seniors and 

handicapped individuals to assist them to continue to live within their own homes. 

Page 27 of 102



FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT 
 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017 
 
 

9 

 Funding of program to provide emotional and practical support to victims experiencing a 

trauma and to first responders. 

 

During the fiscal year 2016-2017, the District received a total of $809,069 in grant requests and 

approved distribution of $708,686 to qualified applicants. This brings the total amount granted by the 

District since June 1999 to $7,912,234. 

 

CONTACTING THE DISTRICT’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

 

Fallbrook Regional Health District 

138 South Brandon Road 

Fallbrook, CA 92028 

(760) 731-9187 Office 

(760) 731-9131 Fax 

Email:  fallbrookbealthcare@earthlink.net 

Website:  www.fallbrookhealthcaredistrict.org 

Page 28 of 102

http://www/


 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Page 29 of 102



Current Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 2,542,642$       

Investments 4,247,245         

Reimbursement receivable -                    

Taxes receivable 14,050              

Interest receivable 7,817                

Prepaid expenses 46,776              

Total current assets 6,858,530         

Non-current assets:

Assets held for resale (Note 10) 4,711,360         

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 292,910            

Total non-current assets 5,004,270         

TOTAL ASSETS 11,862,800$     

Current liabilities:

Accrued liabilities 94,177              

Total current liabilities 94,177              

Compensated absences 20,687              

Total liabilities 114,864            

Net Position 

Invested in capital assets, net 292,910            

Unrestricted 11,455,026       

Total net position 11,747,936       

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION 11,862,800$     

FALLBROOK HEALTHCARE DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2017

ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

10

Page 30 of 102



Operating revenues:
Property taxes 1,793,446$      

Total operating revenues 1,793,446        

Operating expenses:
Comminity healthcare programs 708,686           
Direct care services 99,000             
Administrative services 360,580           
Salaries and benefits 273,976           
Management and maintenance 279,284           
Depreciation 564                  

Total operating expenses 1,722,090        

Operating income (loss) 71,356             

Non-operating revenues and (expenses):
Interest and investment income 21,248             
Lease income 57,600             
Gain on disposal of assets 133,030           

Total non-operating revenues and (expenses) 211,878           

Change in net position 283,234           

Beginning net position 11,464,702      

Ending net position 11,747,936$    

FALLBROOK HEALTHCARE DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

11

Page 31 of 102



Cash flows from operating activities:

Cash received from County of San Diego for property taxes 1,779,396$      

Cash payments to vendors for goods and services (709,356)         

Cash payments to employees for services (257,746)         

Cash payments to grantees for programs (705,629)         

Net cash provided by operating activities 106,665           

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:

Proceeds from lease of property 57,600             

Net cash provided by (used in) capital and related financing

activities 57,600             

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Post-lease termination settlement activities (Note 10) 291,012           

Net cash provided by (used in) capital and related financing
activities 348,612           

Cash flows from investing activities:

Fixed asset additions (4,472)             

Interest revenue 10,042             

Net cash provided by investing activities 5,570               

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 460,847           

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 2,081,795        

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 2,542,642$      

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash 

provided by (used) by operating activities:

Operating income 71,356$           

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net

cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Depreciation 564                  

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Tax receivable (14,050)           

Prepaid items and deposits (2,470)             

Accrued liabilities 35,035             

Compensated absence 16,230             

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 106,665$         

FALLBROOK HEALTHCARE DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

12

Page 32 of 102



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Page 33 of 102



FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT 
 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017 
 
 

13 

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

 

The financial statements of the Fallbrook Regional Health District (the “District”) have 

been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 

States of America (“U.S. GAAP”) as it applies to government units. The Governmental 

Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) is the accepted standard-setting body for 

establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more 

significant of the District’s accounting policies are described below. 

 

A. Reporting Entity 

 

The District, formerly known as the Fallbrook Hospital District, is organized under the 

provisions of the Health and Safety Code of the State of California to provide and 

operate health care facilities in Fallbrook, California, an unincorporated area within the 

County of San Diego, California (“County”). 

 

B. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus 

 

The financial statements include a Statement of Net Position, a Statement of Revenues, 

Expenses, and Changes in Net Position, and a Statement of Cash Flows. 

 

The Statement of Net Position reports separate sections for Deferred Outflows of 

Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources, where applicable. 

 

Deferred Outflows of Resources represent outflows of resources (consumption of net 

position) that apply to future periods and that, therefore, will not be recognized as an 

expense until that time. 

 

Deferred Inflows of Resources represent inflows of resources (acquisition of net 

position) that apply to future periods and that, therefore, are not recognized as revenue 

until that time. 

 

These financial statements are accounted for using the “economic resources” 

measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, all of the 

District’s assets and liabilities, including capital assets, are included in the 

accompanying Statement of Net Position. The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and 

Changes in Net Position presents the change in net position. Under the accrual basis of 

accounting, revenues are recognized in the period in which they are earned while 

expenses are recognized in the period in which the liability is incurred. The Statement 

of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position presents increases (revenues) and 

decreases (expenses) in total net position.  Operating revenues are those revenues that 

are generated from property tax only. All other revenues are reported as non-operating 

revenues. Operating expenses are those expenses that are essential to the primary 

operations of the District. All other expenses are reported as non-operating expenses. 

 

Page 34 of 102



FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT 
 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017 
 
 

14 

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - continued 

 

C. Investments 

 

Investment Valuation 

 

Highly liquid investments with maturities of one year or less at the time of purchase are 

stated at amortized cost. All other investments are stated at fair value. Market value is 

used as fair value for those securities for which market quotations are readily available. 

 

State Investment Pool 

 

The District participates in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF), an investment 

pool managed by the State of California. LAIF has invested a portion of the pool funds 

in Structured Notes and Asset-Backed Securities. These Structured Notes and Asset-

Backed Securities are subject to market risk as a result of changes in interest rates. 

LAIF’s investments are subject to credit risk with the full faith and credit of the State of 

California collateralizing these investments. 

 

CalTrust Investment 

 

The District also participates in CalTrust, which is a pool of diversified marketable 

bonds; including federal, federal agency, corporate, and California municipal bonds. 

The bonds are pooled in a Medium Term account and the pool is managed by 

Nottingham Investment Administration. CalTrust investments are subject to market risk 

as a result of changes in interest rates. 

 

D. Property Taxes 

 

Property taxes are levied on March 1 and are payable in two installments: November 1 

and February 1 of each year. Property taxes become delinquent on December 10 and 

April 10, for the first and second installments, respectively. The lien date is March 1. 

The County of San Diego, California (“County”) bills and collects property taxes and 

remits them to the District according to a payment schedule established by the County. 

 

The County is permitted by State law to levy on properties at 1% of full market value 

(at time of purchase) and can increase the property tax rate at no more than 2% per 

year. The District receives a share of this basic tax levy proportionate to what it 

received during the years 1976-1978. 

 

Property taxes are recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes have been levied. 

No allowance for doubtful accounts was considered necessary. 

 

 

 

Page 35 of 102



FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT 
 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017 
 
 

15 

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - continued 

 

E. Assets Held for Resale 

 

The District’s assets held for resale are stated at the lower of fair market value or cost. 

These assets consist of a hospital building and a wellness center building and were 

acquired as part of the lease termination settlement with Fallbrook Hospital 

Corporation (Note 10). At June 30, 2017, the balance of assets held for resale was 

$4,711,360. 

 

F    Capital Assets 

 

The District’s capital assets are stated at cost. Depreciation has been provided over the 

estimated useful lives of the assets using the straight-line method, generally 3-10 years. 

The capitalization threshold is $500. 

 

G. Compensated Absences 

 

It is the District’s policy to permit contract employees to accumulate earned but unused 

vacation leave time. Non­contract employees may accumulate earned but unused 

vacation leave time up to a maximum of thirty (30) days. All employees may accrue 

unused sick leave time up to a maximum of thirty (30) days. Upon termination, all 

employees are entitled to a lump sum payment of 25% of accrued sick leave, not to 

exceed fifteen (15) days. At June 30, 2017, compensated absences balance was 

$22,327. 

 

H. Net Position 

 

Net position represents the difference between all other elements in the statement of net 

position and should be displayed in the following three components: 

 

Net Investment in Capital Assets component of net position consists of capital assets, 

net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of bonds, 

mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, 

construction, or improvement of those assets. 

 

Restricted component of net position consists of restricted assets reduced by liabilities 

and deferred inflows of resources related to those assets. 

 

Unrestricted component of net position is the amount of the assets, deferred outflows of 

resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources that are not included in the 

determination of net investment in capital assets or the restricted component of net 

position. 

 

At June 30, 2016, the District had no restricted component of net position. 
 

Page 36 of 102



FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT 
 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017 
 
 

16 

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - continued 

 

H. Net Position - continued 

 

Use of Restricted and Unrestricted Net Position 

 

When an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted 

component of net position is available, the District’s policy is to apply restricted 

component of net position first. 

 

I. Use of Estimates 

 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles 

generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make 

estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements 

and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

 

Note 2:  Lease Agreement with Fallbrook Hospital Corporation 

 

Effective November 1, 1998, the District entered into a Lease Agreement (“Agreement”) 

with Fallbrook Hospital Corporation (“Corporation”), a healthcare system located in the 

County to operate the Fallbrook Hospital for the benefit of District residents. While the 

hospital license remains in the name of the District, the Corporation has the responsibility 

of maintaining the license, maintaining the hospital in good condition, maintaining 

appropriate accreditations and adequate insurance, and providing quarterly status reports to 

the District. In connection with the Agreement, the District entered into a 30-year Transfer 

and Lease Agreement with the Corporation, whereby the District’s assets and liabilities, 

except land, investment funds, debt established pursuant to certain loan agreements, and the 

deferred compensation program, were transferred to the Corporation. In November 1998, 

the District exercised its option to have the Corporation prepay the receivable to the 

District. Rental income to the District from the Corporation for the remaining term of the 

Agreement is $1 per year. 

 

At the end of the Agreement’s 30-year term, the Corporation will transfer back to the 

District all assets and liabilities pursuant to terms substantially identical to those of the 

Transfer and Lease Agreement. 

 

On March 31, 2015, the District and the Corporation entered into a Lease Termination 

Settlement Agreement to early terminate the Agreement. See Note 10 for further details. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 37 of 102



FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT 
 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017 
 
 

17 

Note 3: Cash and Cash Equivalents 

 

The following is a summary of cash and cash equivalents at June 30, 2017: 

 

 Amount 

Cash and Cash Equivalents:   

Bank deposits $ 1,094,155 

LAIF  1,448,487 

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 2,542,642 

 

A. Cash Deposits 

 

The carrying amount of the District’s cash deposits was $1,094,155 as of 

June 30, 2016. Bank balances before reconciling items were $1,096,751 at that date, 

which were fully insured or collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial 

institutions in the District’s name as discussed below. 

 

The California Government Code requires California banks and savings and loan 

associations to secure the District’s cash by pledging securities as collateral. This Code 

states that collateral pledged in this manner shall have the effect of perfecting a security 

interest in such collateral superior to those of a general creditor. Thus, collateral for 

cash is considered to be held in the District’s name.  The market value of pledged 

securities must equal at least 110% of the District’s cash. California law also allows 

financial institutions to secure the District’s cash by pledging first trust deed mortgage 

notes having a value of 150% of the District’s total cash. 

 

B. Local Agency Investment Funds  

 

The District’s deposit with LAIF at June 30, 2017, includes a portion of the pool funds 

invested in structured notes and asset-backed securities and similar transactions. These 

investments may include the following: 

 

Structured Notes – Debt securities (other than asset-backed securities) whose 

cash-flow characteristics (coupon rate, redemption amount, or stated maturity) 

depend on one or more indices and/or that have imbedded forwards or options. 

 

Asset-Backed Securities – Generally, mortgage-backed securities entitle their 

purchasers to receive a share of the cash flows from a pool of assets such as 

principal and interest repayments from a pool of mortgages (for example, 

collateralized mortgage obligations) or credit card receivables. 

 

As of June 30, 2017, the District had $1,448,487 invested in LAIF, which had invested 

0% of the pool investment funds in Structured Notes and Asset-Backed Securities. The 

reported value of the pool is the same as the fair value of the pool shares. 
 
 

Page 38 of 102



FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT 
 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017 
 
 

18 

Note 4: Investments 

 

The District is generally authorized under state statutes to invest in: 

 

 Obligations of the U.S. Government, its agencies, and instrumentalities 

 Certificates of deposit and other evidences of deposit at commercial banks and savings 

and loan institutions 

 Prime bankers acceptances 

 Prime commercial paper 

 Negotiable certificates of deposit 

 Repurchase agreements 

 Money market funds 

 State of California Local Agency Investment Fund 

 Medium-term notes 

 

The following is summary of investments at June 30, 2017: 

 

 

 Credit 

Rating  Amount 

Investments:      

CalTrust  Not Rated  $ 4,247,245 

Total Investments    $ 4,247,245 

 

Investments held by the District, grouped by maturity date at June 30, 2017, were as 

follows: 

 

 Amount 

Investments:   

CalTrust $ 4,247,245 

Total Investments $ 4,247,245 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 39 of 102



FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT 
 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017 
 
 

19 

Note 5: Capital Assets 

 

Capital assets activities for the year ended June 30, 2016, are as follows: 

 

 

Balance 

July 1, 

2015  Additions  Deletions 

  Balance 

June 30, 2016 

Capital assets, 

depreciable: 

           

Buildings and improvements $ 291,240  $ -  $ -  $ 291,240 

Furniture and fixtures  2,375   -   -   2,375 

Equipment  17,148   126   -   17,274 

 Subtotal  310,763   126   -   310,889 

            

Accumulated depreciation  (19,162)   (1,660)   -   (20,822) 

            

Capital Assets, Net $ 291,601  $ (1,534)  $ -  $ 290,067 

 

Note 6: Commitment and Contingencies 

 

Earthquake Retrofit 

 

Senate Bill 1953 imposes certain requirements that acute care hospitals would be required 

to meet within a specified time. These requirements include conducting seismic 

evaluations. Hospitals determined to pose certain risks shall only be used for non-acute care 

purposes after January 1, 2008. After January 1, 2030, all hospitals must be in compliance. 

The District is not liable for compliance with Senate Bill 1953 in accordance with the 

Agreement with the Fallbrook Hospital Corporation. 

 

Note 7: Insurance 

 

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and 

destruction of assets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters for which the District 

carries insurance through Special District Risk Management Authority (“SDRMA”). 

SDRMA is a risk pooling joint powers authority formed under the California Government 

Code to provide insurance coverage for SDRMA’s member districts. SDRMA purchases 

excess insurance from commercial carriers to reduce its exposure to large losses. 

 

There were no instances in the past three years where a settlement exceeded the District’s 

coverage provided through SDRMA. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 40 of 102



FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT 
 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017 
 
 

20 

Note 8: Transfers To/From Fallbrook Hospital Corporation 

 

All property tax revenues, as they are incrementally collected and paid to the District, will 

remain with the District and will not be shared, except as allocated by separate resolution. 

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, no transfers were made to the Corporation. 

 

Cost report settlements for all years prior to the Agreement have been settled. 

 

Note 9:   Defined Contribution Pension Plan 

 

The District has a Section 408(p) defined contribution pension plan as allowed under the 

Internal Revenue Code. The plan type sponsored by the District is the Savings Incentive 

Match Plan for Employees of Small Employers (SIMPLE), which was effective on January 

6, 2006. The Plan is a defined contribution retirement plan in which the employer’s 

contribution is nondiscretionary and is based on a formula that is not related to profit. The 

Plan sponsor guarantees no benefit and bears no investment risk while the Plan participants 

bear all investment risk and have no guaranteed level of benefits. 

 

Eligible non-contract employees may begin participating in the Pension Plan following a 

one year probationary employment period. The Administrator may begin participating the 

first day of the month following the employment date of work.  The Plan is entirely funded 

by District contributions of up to 3% of the participants’ gross pay for employees hired on 

or after March 1, 2006 who contribute up to 3% of their salary to the deferred 

compensation plan. Participants are fully vested upon joining the plan. Plan provisions and 

contribution requirements are established and may be amended by the District. Participants 

are eligible to begin receiving benefits at age 55. 

 

The District’s payroll for employees covered by the Plan for the year ended June 30, 2016, 

was $0. Total employer contributions paid by the District amounted to $0. 

 

Funds paid into the Plan by the District are placed in a SIMPLE IRA account at a financial 

institution determined by the Plan participants. The financial information of the defined 

contribution pension plan is not in the accompanying financial statements. 
 

Note 10: Lease Termination Settlement 

 

The District leased the Fallbrook Hospital to the Fallbrook Hospital Corporation (the 

“Corporation”) pursuant to a 30 year lease (the “Lease”) in November 1998, which was set 

to terminate on its own terms in November 2028. Upon the expected termination of the 

Lease in 2028, the District was to absorb significant financial responsibilities, including, 

but not limited to, the repurchase of termination assets, reimbursement of prepaid rent (if 

any), and the need for working capital to keep the Fallbrook Hospital operating. 

 

 

 

 

Page 41 of 102



FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT 
 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017 
 
 

21 

Note 10: Lease Termination Settlement - continued 

 

In order to ensure that the District had sufficient resources to accommodate the upcoming 

financial obligations, on December 14, 2011, the District’s Board voted unanimously in 

favor of creating a lease termination contingency reserve which was expressly dedicated to 

address those expenses required of the District at the time that the lease with Fallbrook 

Hospital Corporation was set to end. 

 

However, in December 2013, the District was presented with a Government Code claim 

(per section 910 of the California Government Code) from the Corporation. The claim was 

for the District’s “refusal” to reimburse the Corporation for its operating losses for several 

hospital core services. In February 2014, the District issued a Notice of Rejection of the 

First Code Claim to the Corporation and declined to reimburse the core services losses. 

 

Per the Lease, after notifying the District and providing reasonable supporting 

documentation substantiating the core service losses, the Corporation is allowed to 

commence the process of closing the core services that are operating at a loss. The District 

received notice from the Corporation on May 21, 2014, that the Corporation was initiating 

the process for closing of many of the core services. On September 11, 2014, the District 

and the Corporation signed the Agreement Regarding Continuation of Services in which 

the Corporation agreed to continue to provide certain core services through November 17, 

2014. The District agreed to pay the Corporation $711,000 for these services which was 

actually paid out during the 2014/2015 fiscal year. 

 

Finally, on January 29, 2015, the District and the Corporation signed the Settlement 

Agreement/Termination Agreement and Mutual Release (“Settlement Agreement”) in order 

to terminate the Lease Agreement and Operating Agreement effective March 31, 2015. The 

District agreed to pay the Corporation $5 million by February 11, 2015. The Settlement 

Agreement released the District from the Corporation’s previous breach of contract and 

operating loss coverage claims. It also released the District from any obligations under any 

repurchase agreements related to “Termination Assets” in the original Lease Agreement in 

1998. 
 

The District regained use rights for the Fallbrook Hospital Building, the Wellness Center 

Building, and the Urgent Care Building. At June 30, 2016, the Urgent Care building was 

being leased to a third party operator. The District is holding the other properties for sale or 

for lease. The District recorded the $5 million settlement fee to these repurchased 

‘‘Termination Assets” as follows: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 42 of 102



FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT 
 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017 
 
 

22 

Note 10: Lease Termination Settlement - continued 

 

 

Address 

 

Description  Sq. Feet  

Allocation 

%  

Termination 

Fee 

Allocation* 

Assets Held for Resale:            

624 E. Elder  Fallbrook Hospital   75,840   88.35%  $ 4,417,520 

138 Brandon  Wellness Center   5,000   5.83%   291,240 

     80,840   94.18%   4,708,760 

            

Building and Improvements:            

617 Alvarado  Urgent Care Building   5,000   5.82%   291,240 

     85,840   100.00%  $ 5,000,000 

 

* Schedule pertains to allocation of settlement payment under Termination and Settlement 

Agreement and is neither reflective of nor intended to represent the fair market value of 

the entire real property and improvements thereon. 

 

Note 11: Subsequent Events 

 

Subsequent events have been evaluated through October 11, 2017. On September 29, 2017 

the District was able to sell the former hospital building located at 624 East Elder Street, 

Fallbrook, CA 92028 for the amount of $4,265,053 to Fallbrook Partners, LLC located at 

520 Capitol Mall, Suite 800, Sacramento, CA. 

 

Page 43 of 102



Page 44 of 102



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

FALLBROOK REGIONAL  

HEALTH DISTRICT 

 

MANAGEMENT REPORT 

 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 
 

 

 

Page 45 of 102



FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT 

 

 

 

Management Report 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017 

 

 

Table of Contents 

 

 

                   Page 

 

Introduction .................................................................................................................................1 

 

Required communication .......................................................................................................... 2-5 

 

 

 

 

Page 46 of 102



 

1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Board of Directors of the 

Fallbrook Regional Health District 

Fallbrook, California 

 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the Fallbrook Regional Health 

District for the year ended June 30, 2017, we considered the District’s internal control structure to 

determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the financial 

statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control structure. 

 

Our consideration of the internal control would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal 

control that might be material weaknesses under standards established by the American Institute of 

Certified Public Accountants.  A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of 

one or more of the internal control components does not reduce, to a relatively low level, the risk that 

errors or irregularities in amounts that would be material in relation to the basic financial statements 

being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal 

course of performing their assigned functions. 

 

We will review the status of these comments during our next audit engagement.  We will be pleased 

to discuss them in further detail at your convenience, to perform any additional study of these 

matters, or to assist you in implementing the recommendations.  We thank the District’s staff for its 

cooperation on this audit. 

 

Fechter & Company, Certified Public Accountants 

 

 

 

 

 

 

October 11, 2017 

Sacramento, CA 

Page 47 of 102



FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT 

Management Report 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2016 

 2 

 

 

The Auditor’s Responsibility under U.S. Generally Accepted Auditing Standards 

 

As stated in our engagement letter dated June 7, 2017, our responsibility, as described by 

professional standards, is to plan and perform our audit to obtain reasonable, but not absolute 

assurance that the financial statements are free of material misstatement and are fairly presented in 

accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.  Because an audit is designed to 

provide reasonable, but not absolute assurance and because we did not perform a detailed 

examination of all transactions, there is a risk that material misstatements may exist and not be 

detected by us. 

 

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the District’s internal control over financial 

reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on 

the financial statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control over financial reporting. 

 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District financial statements are free of 

material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 

regulations, contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect 

on the determination of financial statement amounts.  However, providing an opinion on compliance 

with those provisions was not an objective of our audit. 

 

Significant Accounting Policies 

 

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies.  In 

accordance with the terms of our engagement letter, we will advise management about the 

appropriateness of accounting policies and their application.  The significant accounting policies used 

by the District are described in Note 1 to the financial statements.  No new accounting policies were 

adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed during the year.  We noted no 

transactions entered into by the District during the year that were both significant and unusual, and of 

which, under professional standards, we are required to inform you, or transactions for which there is 

a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. 

 

Internal Control Related Matters 

 

In any smaller entity, whether private enterprise or a governmental agency, the lack of segregation of 

duties can present potential issues in regards to the perpetuation and concealment of fraud.  Even 

with a perfect segregation of duties frauds can be perpetuated and concealed.  The District can 

perform some specific control procedures to help reduce the risk of fraud, however.  Some of the 

controls would include: 

 

 Having someone independent of the bank reconciliation function review the bank statements on a 

monthly basis.  At this District it would mean someone independent of the accounting function 

reviewing the county reports and multitude of bank accounts and bank reconciliations. 

 Examining a budget to actual report on a frequent basis. 

 Comparing the financial statements on a detailed level to the prior year on a frequent basis. 

 Requiring someone independent of the payroll process review payroll on a bi-weekly  basis, 

checking for accuracy of pay rates, paid time off recorded, etc. 

Page 48 of 102



FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT 

Management Report 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2016 

 3 

 

 

 Verifying that a second person is approving all disbursement activity and that an individual 

independent of the accounting function is signing checks and asking questions about invoices 

presented for payment. 

 Frequently displaying “professional skepticism” when considering staff responses on District 

finances. 

 

California Government Code Section 12422.5 requires the State Controller’s office to develop 

internal control guidelines applicable to each local agency by January 1, 2015.  The intent of the 

legislation is to assist local agencies in establishing a system of internal control to safeguard assets 

and prevent and detect financial errors and fraud.  To this end, the State Controller’s Office has 

produced a draft of control guidelines for local Agencies.  As the District contemplates changes to its 

system of internal control, we advise in utilizing these guidelines when developing internal 

procedures to assist with your internal control processes. 

 

The State Controller’s office has defined internal controls into five components that work together in 

an integrated framework.  Their guidelines were adopted from the definitions and descriptions 

contained in Internal Control – Integrated Framework, published by the Committee of Sponsoring 

Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO).  The components are: 

 

 Control Environment 

 Risk Assessment 

 Control Activities 

 Information and Communication 

 Monitoring Activities 

 

The objective of control environment is the set of standards, processes, and structures that provided 

the basis for carrying out internal control across the entity.  The governing board and management 

establish the “tone at the top” regarding the importance of internal control, including expected 

standards of conduct which then cascade down through the various levels of the organization and 

have a strong effect on the overall system of internal control. 

 

A District’s Risk Assessment process includes how management identifies risks (including fraud risk) 

relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with the 

District’s applicable financial reporting framework.  In addition, this would also involve areas of 

business and operational risk which could potentially affect the District’s finances on a go-forward 

basis. 

 

The District’s risk assessment process is an extremely important activity the board and management 

should undertake.  Every organization, public or private, faces business risks on a day to day basis.  

Identifying those risks and then acting on them in a timely manner may prevent future problems from 

becoming completely unmanageable.   

 

Management should consistently attempt to identify risks that exist and then present those risks to the 

board for action.  It is impossible for us to identify every potential risk that exists but either way, 

management and the board should proactively attempt to identify risks that could adversely affect the 

District’s operations. 

Page 49 of 102



FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT 

Management Report 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2016 

 4 

 

 

Control Activities are in reference to establishing policies and procedures that achieve management 

directives and respond to identified risks in the internal control system.  These are specific 

procedures designed to perform a secondary review of internal processes that will allow for 

segregation of duties and a management level review of processed transactions. 

 

Information and Communication are the District’s methods of identifying what information is 

relevant to present to management and the board to assist the District in making the correct decisions.  

It also is in reference to the District’s internal processes of gathering and summarizing that 

information. 

 

Monitoring involves evaluating the effectiveness of controls on an on-going basis and taking 

remedial actions when necessary when identified by the other control procedures in place.  On-going 

monitoring activities often are built into the normal recurring activities of a local government and 

include regular management and supervisory activities.   

 

There is no catch-all for finding all instances of fraud within any entity, whether public or private.  

One of the key factors in helping prevent fraud is to encourage ethical behavior at all levels of the 

organization, i.e., “tone at the top”.  Another key would be to note instances of abnormal behavior of 

finance or accounting staff when questioned about District financial matters.   

 

The District should remember that they have outside resources available in the case of fraud – they 

are able to contact District auditor, their attorney, or county auditor-controller should anyone feel 

there is a chance of fraud or abuse. 

 

Accounting Estimates 

 

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and 

are based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and 

assumptions about future events.  Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of 

their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events 

affecting them may differ significantly from those expected.  The most sensitive estimate(s) affecting 

the financial statements were: 

 

 Accrual and disclosure of compensated absences 

 Capital asset lives and depreciation expense 

 

Audit Adjustments 

 

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define an audit adjustment as a proposed correction 

of the financial statements that, in our judgment, may not have been detected except through our 

auditing procedures.  An audit adjustment may or may not indicate matters that could have a 

significant effect on the District’s financial reporting process (that is, cause future financial  

 

 

 

 

Page 50 of 102



FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT 

Management Report 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2016 

 5 

 

statements to be materially misstated).  The following audit adjustments, in our judgment, indicate 

matters that could have a significant effect on the District’s financial reporting process: 

 

 Posting of all GASB 34 entries on behalf of the district 

 

Disagreements with Management 

 

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a 

matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, concerning a financial accounting, reporting, or 

auditing matter that could be significant to the financial statements or the auditor’s report.  We are 

pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit. 

 

Consultations with Other Independent Auditors 

 

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and 

accounting matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations.  If a consultation 

involves application of an accounting principle to the governmental unit’s financial statements or a 

determination of the type of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our 

professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the 

consultant has all the relevant facts.  To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other 

accountants. 

 

Issues Discussed Prior to Retention of Independent Auditors 

 

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and 

auditing standards, with management each year prior to retention as the District’s auditors. However,  

these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses 

were not a condition to our retention. 

 

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 

 

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing our audit.

Page 51 of 102



Page 52 of 102



 

FRHD Request for Proposals – Extended Hours Urgent Care – October, 2017 Page 1 
 

 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL 
URGENT CARE SERVICES 

 

Fallbrook Regional Health District is requesting proposals from medical providers within and 

adjacent to the communities it serves, regarding the provision of extended hours Urgent Care 

services the greater Fallbrook Community.   

Therefore, the Board is interested in receiving proposals from both current and prospective 

providers of Urgent Care services.  The proposal shall contemplate providing Urgent Care services 

from 8am to 10 pm weekdays and 8 hours on weekends and holidays. 

The Proposal should address all of the following elements: 

A. Introductory materials identifying the entity, its tenure and experience within the 

community,  the range of services which it currently offers, including any affiliations 

with similar medical facilities outside of Fallbrook, Bonsall, Rainbow, and southern 

DeLuz; 

 

B.  A brief narrative discussing  the proposing entity’s assessment of the community’s need 

(and the proponent’s vision) for the providing of Urgent Care services on an extended 

hours basis; 

 

C. The lead time that proposing entity would need to bring such services on line, if a new 

service or facility, and detailed costs associated with start up as well as the ongoing 

provision of extended hours coverage; 

 

D. For proposing entities with existing medical practices in the community, a discussion of 

how urgent care services would be integrated into the existing service, with a view 

toward compliance with ethical rules and statutes governing conflicts and referrals. 

 

E. A specific notation of how the proposing entity would address and provide ancillary 

services including, without limitation wellness screenings, vaccinations, breathing 

treatments, physical exams,  radiological and lab services in support of the urgent care 

operations. 

Page 53 of 102



 

FRHD Request for Proposals – Extended Hours Urgent Care – October, 2017 Page 2 
 

 

F. Discussion of care to be provided for Medi-Cal patients, including a definitive statement 

of the proposing entity’s  intentions regarding acceptance of Medi-Cal patients. 

 

G. Any specific additional information the entity wished to present to demonstrate 

commitment and quality service to the community; 

All proposals received will be evaluated based upon: 

1.  The submitting entity’s demonstrated record of success and experience providing 

medical/urgent care services to the community; 

 

2. The qualifications and experience of the key personnel for submitting entity;  

 

3. The submitting entity’s willingness to commit to providing services on an indefinite 

basis beyond the defined  period of temporary support; 

 

4. The District Board may wish to conduct interviews with submitting entities as part of 

its review process. 

ABOUT THE DISTRICT 

Fallbrook Regional Health District was formed in 1950 as a hospital district, and was charged 

with the construction and operation of Fallbrook Hospital.  The District provides services to an 

area of approximately 110 Square miles consisting of the unincorporated communities of 

Fallbrook, Bonsall, Rainbow, and the southern portion of DeLuz, a community of nearly 57,000 

residents. 

In November, 1998, the District Board, with voter approval, signed a 30-year lease agreement 

with Community Health Systems, Inc., to operate Fallbrook Hospital.  Shortly thereafter, the 

District reorganized as a “Healthcare District” to reflect the changing reality of its mission and 

essential functions.  Following several years of declining performance and increased 

competition from more modern facilities, the long term lease came to a premature end in July, 

2015, and the Hospital was closed at that time. 

Despite the closure of the Hospital, the District is and has remained committed to promoting 

the health of the people of the District and enhancing access to sustainable, quality healthcare 

services. 

  

Page 54 of 102



 

FRHD Request for Proposals – Extended Hours Urgent Care – October, 2017 Page 3 
 

DUE DATE 

All Proposals should be submitted to the District no later than 5pm on Friday, November 30, 

2017. 

Bobbi Palmer, MBA, MSW 

Executive Director 

Fallbrook Regional Health District 

bpalmer@fallbrookhealth.org 

138 S. Brandon Road 

Fallbrook, CA 92028 

Proposals may also be submitted via e-mail or digital media to: 

lbannerman@fallbrookhealth.org 

pknox@fallbrookhealth.org 

Page 55 of 102

mailto:bpalmer@fallbrookhealth.org
mailto:lbannerman@fallbrookhealth.org
mailto:pknox@fallbrookhealth.org


Page 56 of 102



Page 1 of 5

RESOLUTION NO. 787

RESOLUTION OF APPLICATION TO SAN DIEGO LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION 
COMMISSION FROM THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF TRI-CITY HEALTHCARE 

DISTRICT FOR THE ANNEXATION OF TERRITORY & AMENDMENT OF TRI-
CITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT’S SPHERE OF INFLUENCE

WHEREAS, TRI-CITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT is a California healthcare district 
duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of California, particularly the Local 
Health Care District Law, constituting Division 23 of the Health and Safety Code of the State of 
California, and more particularly, Health and Safety Code §§ 32000 et seq.; 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Tri-City Healthcare District desire to initiate 
proceedings pursuant to the Cortese/Knox/Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization Act of 
2000, Division 3, commencing with Section 56000 of the California Government Code, for the 
reorganization of the Tri-City Healthcare District; 

WHEREAS, the proposal is made pursuant to Sections 56650,56700, 56653, and 56654 
of the California Government Code for a resolution of application for reorganization; 
specifically, the annexation of certain territories and for an amendment of Tri-City Healthcare 
District’s sphere of influence; 

WHEREAS, the nature of the proposed reorganization includes the following boundary 
changes: 

1. The de-annexation of, generally, the territory in Camp Pendleton that is currently 
in the Tri-City Healthcare District’s boundaries (Camp Pendleton) as described 
herein and the territory in San Marcos that is currently in the Tri-City Healthcare 
District’s boundaries (San Marcos) as described herein; 

2. The annexation of, generally, the remaining territory in the City of Vista that is 
not currently in the Tri-City Healthcare District’s boundaries (Shadowridge) as 
described herein, the remaining territory in the City of Carlsbad that is not 
currently in the Tri-City Healthcare District’s boundaries (South Carlsbad) as 
described herein, and the remaining territory in the City of Oceanside that is not 
currently in the Tri-City Healthcare District’s boundaries (Oceanside) as 
described herein; and
 

3. Amendment of the Tri-City Healthcare District’s sphere of influence to exclude 
the Camp Pendleton and San Marcos areas and to include the Shadowridge, South 
Carlsbad, and Oceanside areas; 

WHEREAS, a description of the boundaries of the affected territory of Camp Pendleton, 
and a map showing the boundaries of the affected territory, are attached to this Resolution as 
Exhibit “A” (“Camp Pendleton”);

Page 57 of 102



Page 2 of 5

WHEREAS, a description of the boundaries of the affected territory of Shadowridge, and 
a map showing the boundaries of the affected territory, are attached to this Resolution as Exhibit 
“B” (“Shadowridge”);  

WHEREAS, a description of the boundaries of the affected territory South Carlsbad and a 
map showing the boundaries of the affected territory, are attached to this Resolution as Exhibit 
“C” (“South Carlsbad”);

WHEREAS, a description of the boundaries of the affected territory Oceanside and a map 
showing the boundaries of the affected territory, are attached to this Resolution as Exhibit “D” 
(“Oceanside”);

WHEREAS, a description of the boundaries of the affected territory San Marcos and a 
map showing the boundaries of the affected territory, are attached to this Resolution as Exhibit 
“E” (“San Marcos”);

WHEREAS, Tri-City acknowledges that it has no Master Property Exchange Agreement 
with the County of San Diego, and therefore, there shall be no reallocation of property tax 
revenue between San Diego County and Tri-City Healthcare District under Revenue and 
Taxation Code § 99; 

WHEREAS, in accordance with Government Code section 56653, Tri-City Healthcare 
District hereby submits the following plan for providing services and reasons for this proposal:

1. The Camp Pendleton area has been included in Tri-City Healthcare District’s 
sphere of influence to be coterminous with the Oceanside Unified School District 
boundary, which extends into Camp Pendleton because the School District 
operates three schools in the Camp Pendleton area. Tri-City Healthcare District, 
unlike the Oceanside Unified School District, does not currently operate facilities 
or provide healthcare programs within the Camp Pendleton area. 

2. The San Marcos area consists of a small portion of the City of San Marcos. As the 
majority of the City of San Marcos is currently located within the Palomar 
Healthcare District service area and sphere, the San Marcos area should be de-
annexed from the Tri-City Healthcare District and consolidated within the 
Palomar Healthcare District in accordance with the principal act, specifically, 
Health and Safety Code § 32001, which specifically states that the territory of a 
municipal corporation shall not be divided.   

3. The 2015 San Diego County Health Care Services and Sphere Review (“2015 
Study”) recommended Tri-City Healthcare District consider annexation of the 
Shadowridge area. The Shadowridge area consists of approximately 2,500-acres 
that is primarily located with the City of Vista’s incorporated territory. The 
Shadowridge area is not presently served by any healthcare district service area, 
but is surrounded by Tri-City Healthcare District and Palomar Healthcare District 
service areas and spheres.   

Page 58 of 102



Page 3 of 5

4. As the majority of the City of Vista is currently located within the Tri-City 
Healthcare District service area and sphere, the 2015 Study recommended the 
Shadowridge area should be consolidated within Tri-City Healthcare District in 
accordance with the principal act, specifically, Health and Safety Code § 32001, 
which specifically states that the territory of a municipal corporation shall not be 
divided. 

5. The 2015 Study also identified and recommended Tri-City Healthcare District 
consider annexation of a southern portion of Carlsbad’s incorporated territory.  
This South Carlsbad area consists of approximately 5,600 acres entirely located 
within Carlsbad.  Like Shadowridge, this area is not currently served by any 
healthcare district service area.  The Tri-City Healthcare District service area and 
sphere includes the majority of the City of Carlsbad’s incorporated territory.  
Accordingly, the 2015 Study concluded that Tri-City Healthcare District should 
consider annexation of this South Carlsbad area and evaluate whether inclusion of 
this area would benefit Tri-City Healthcare District and the South Carlsbad area in 
accordance with the principal act, specifically, Health and Safety Code § 32001, 
which specifically states that the territory of a municipal corporation shall not be 
divided. 

6. The 2015 Study also identified and recommended Tri-City Healthcare District 
consider annexation of a small portion of the City of Oceanside’s incorporated 
territory.  This area is currently served by the Fallbrook Healthcare District 
service area.  The Tri-City Healthcare District service area and sphere includes 
the majority of the City of Oceanside’s incorporated territory.  Accordingly, the 
2015 Study concluded that Tri-City Healthcare District should consider 
annexation of this Oceanside area in accordance with the principal act, 
specifically, Health and Safety Code § 32001, which specifically states that the 
territory of a municipal corporation shall not be divided.

7. Tri-City Healthcare District having completed evaluations of the Shadowridge 
and South Carlsbad areas has determined that their annexation, as well as the 
annexation of the Oceanside area, into Tri-City Healthcare District would benefit 
the citizens of these areas, as well as Tri-City Healthcare District, in several ways.

a. Incorporating these areas into Tri-City Healthcare District will allow Tri-
City Healthcare District to open, market, and expand special operations, 
host health awareness events, participate in community outreach, and open 
much needed primary care and specialty care clinics and offices, activities 
which are currently limited to the physical district boundaries. 
  

b. There will be a better accounting of the unique needs of the proposed 
areas to be annexed.  Tri-City Healthcare District is required to submit a 
significant amount of data to the Office of Statewide Health Planning and 
Development, and the Department of Healthcare Services. Such reporting 

Page 59 of 102



Page 4 of 5

is done annually and is disclosed online. Tri-City Healthcare District also 
provides standardized reports to the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid 
Services.  In California, since the late 1990s, nonprofit hospitals have been 
subject to requirements to assess community health needs, and must then 
respond to those needs on a regular basis.  Following the passage of the 
Affordable Care Act, nonprofit hospitals were required to assess 
community needs in a robust and data-driven fashion, and articulate how 
they planned to use their community benefit programs and funds to 
respond to those needs.  As a result, many District Hospital community 
benefit programs, like those at Tri-City Healthcare District, have caught 
up to the rest of  health philanthropy in terms of best practices related to 
disease prevention and addressing social detriments of health (such as 
disease prevention, healthy lifestyles, education, and behavioral health).  
Including the residents of Shadowridge and South Carlsbad into these 
measurements and services will provide meaningful outcome data to 
enhance their health and wellbeing. 

c. The district will be able to engage members of these local communities to 
better educate their residents on services the district provides. Tri-City 
Healthcare District will be better able to inform district residents of its 
goals and accomplishments, emphasizing its work in areas into which 
private sector and for-profit healthcare systems are unable or unwilling to 
venture.

WHEREAS, the person designated as chief petitioner is Steve Dietlin, Chief Executive 
Officer of Tri-City Healthcare District, 4002 Vista Way, Oceanside, California, 92056;

WHEREAS, Tri-City Healthcare District hereby requests that proceedings be taken for 
the proposal pursuant to Government Code § 56700;

WHEREAS, the proposed reorganization includes the de-annexation of Camp Pendleton 
and San Marcos, and the areas of Camp Pendleton and San Marcos are within Tri-City 
Healthcare District’s current sphere of influence;

WHEREAS, the proposed reorganization includes the annexation of Shadowridge, South 
Carlsbad, and Oceanside, and the areas of Shadowridge, South Carlsbad, and Oceanside are not 
within Tri-City Healthcare District’s current sphere of influence;

WHEREAS, this proposal further requests Tri-City Healthcare District’s sphere of 
influence be amended to exclude the de-annexed areas of Camp Pendleton and San Marcos and 
include the annexed areas of Shadowridge, South Carlsbad, and Oceanside so as to effectuate the 
reorganization proposed in this Resolution and its related purposes; 

WHEREAS, a map of the boundaries of Tri-City Healthcare District’s proposed amended 
sphere of influence is attached to this Resolution as Exhibit “F”;

Page 60 of 102



Page 5 of 5

WHEREAS, the proposed reorganization is exempt from the California Environment 
Quality Act (“CEQA”) under the CEQA Guidelines, Section 15061(b)(3);

NOW, THEREFORE, this Resolution is hereby approved and adopted by the Board of 
Directors of the Tri-City Healthcare District.  The San Diego County Local Agency Formation 
Commission is hereby requested to take notice of this Resolution and to initiate proceedings for 
the de-annexation from Tri-City Healthcare District of the two territories described in Exhibits 
“A” and “E” of this Resolution and the annexations to the Tri-City Healthcare District of the 
three territories described in Exhibits “B,” “C,” and “D” of this Resolution, pursuant to the 
Cortese/Knox/Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization Act of 2000, and to amend Tri-City 
Healthcare District’s sphere of influence to unincorporated and exclude the territory described in 
Exhibit “A” and incorporate and include the three territories described in Exhibits “B,” “C,” and 
“D” of this Resolution.

The Chief Executive Officer of the Tri-City Healthcare District is hereby directed to pay 
such fees and provide such further information as may be required to consider these requests.

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this th day of August, 2017, at a regular 
meeting of the Board of Directors of the Tri-City Healthcare District at which a quorum was 
present and acting throughout, at Oceanside, California, by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN/ABSENT:

By: ______________________________
        Chairperson, Board of Directors
        Tri-City Healthcare District 

ATTEST:
By: 
       Secretary, Board of Directors
       Tri-City Healthcare District 

Page 61 of 102



Page 62 of 102



Page 63 of 102



Page 1 of 2 
 

 

 
 

FINANCE COMMITTEE 
 

Wednesday, November 1, 2017 at 5:00 P.M. 
Board Conference Room, 138 S. Brandon Rd., Fallbrook CA 92028 

 
MINUTES 

 
Committee Members Present:  Directors Barbara Mroz, Gordon Tinker, Howard Salmon and Stephen 
Abbott. 
Absent:  Bill Leach 
Staff Members: Executive Director Bobbi Palmer; Accountant Kathy Bogle, Bookkeeper Wendy Lyon 
and Administrative Assistant Linda Bannerman. 
 

1. Call to Order/Roll Call 
Chairperson Mroz called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. 

 
2. Public Comments 

None 
 

3. Review of Financial Statements for September 2017 

1) Balance Sheet Comparison of September - August  

2) Income Statement for September 2017 and fiscal year to date 

3) Profit & Loss Actual vs Budget – September 

4) Profit & Loss Budget Overview July 2016 – June 2017 
The above financial statements for September 2017 were reviewed.  It was noted that 
cash in bank for the operating account increased significantly due to the sale of the old 
hospital building.  It will soon be moved to the Cal-Trust account.  What had previously 
been known as the Contingency Fund will now be known as the Community Investment 
Fund. The current balance is $9,837,855.82.  
  

5) LAIF Report 
The balance in the LAIF Account was $1,451,823. 
  

6) Cal-Trust 
The Cal-Trust balance was $4,262,843. 
 

7) Property Tax Revenue – fiscal year-to-date 
Current balance is at $66,749 with anticipated payments coming in near year-end. 
 

8) Check Detail as of September 2017 
The check detail was reviewed. 

Page 64 of 102



Page 2 of 2 
 

 

 
 
 

9) Review of Annual Audit Draft 
The accountant noted that when the audit indicates “present fairly” it is the equivalent of 
an A+.  There were no recommendations, and the reason the audit report was delayed is 
due to the consideration in the audit of the sale of the old hospital building.  Bobbi Palmer 
said the Audit Report will be on the agenda as a Discussion/Action item at next week’s 
regular meeting. 
 

10) Review of RFP for Urgent Care Services 
Directors Tinker and Salmon had met with the Executive Director to fully discuss the RFP 
for Urgent Care Services.  It was noted that there is no intention of trying to dismiss any 
providers.  It is an effort to see what is needed to increase the number of hours urgent 
care services are provided.  Responses to the RFP are due by November 30, 2017. 
Approximately 10 percent of the adult population uses urgent care services during a given 
year. 
 
There was discussion regarding the request from Tri-City Healthcare District to annex a 
portion of the Fallbrook Regional Health District to the Tri-City District since the land falls 
within the Oceanside City boundary.  This had been a recommendation from LAFCO in 
2015.  Bobbi Palmer reiterated that she had suggested that when there is an opening on 
the LAFCO board, a member of Fallbrook Regional Health District board should consider 
running for a seat. This topic will be a Discussion/Action item at the next regular board 
meeting. 
 

4. Adjournment 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 5:54 p.m.  

 

             
       Board Secretary/Clerk 

Page 65 of 102



Page 66 of 102



Page 1 of 4 
 

FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

Wednesday, November 8, 2017, 6:00 p.m. 
Fallbrook Public Utilities District, 990 E. Mission Rd., Fallbrook 

 
Minutes 

 

A. CALL MEETING TO ORDER – PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
President Tinker called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Present:  Directors Stephen Abbott, Bill Leach, Barbara Mroz, Howard Salmon and Gordon 
Tinker. 
Also Present:  Executive Director Bobbi Palmer, Legal Counsel Blaise Jackson and joining the 
meeting via teleconference was Craig Fechter of Fechter and Company for the purpose of 
reviewing the 2016-2017 Audit Report. 
 

B. ADDITIONS TO AGENDA 
 None 
 
C. BOARD MEMBER AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Ron Stark, Mental Health Systems, North Inland Community Prevention Program Manager said 
he was contacted by FRHD and asked to provide a program for the November Woman of 
Wellness event.  Since the holidays can be stressful for many, he arranged for Payal Beam, 
LCSW, to present “Thriving through the Holidays” with tips for making the season less stressful.  
He said he attended the event and was pleased that her presentation generated a lot of 
discussion and was appreciated.  He noted that Mental Health Systems is a recipient of a 
Community Health Contract through Fallbrook Regional Health District for which they are very 
grateful.  Mr. Stark said they value their relationship with the District in providing for the wellness 
needs of our community. 

 
D. CONSENT ITEMS 
 D1. Approval of September 2017 Financial Statements 
 D2. Minutes of October 4, 2017 Finance Committee Meeting 
 D3. Minutes of October 11, 2017 Regular Board Meeting 

President Tinker noted the above listed consent items and no further discussion was 
requested. 
Action:  It was moved by Director Salmon, seconded by Director Abbott to approve the 
Consent Items as presented.  Motion carried (5-0). 

  
At this time it was recognized that the auditor had conference called in to the meeting for 
the purpose of reviewing the 2016-2017 Audit Report and answering any questions for the 
members of the Board.  There was consensus to move to agenda item F1 prior to 
Reports. 
 

F. DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEMS 
 F1. FY 2016-2017 Independent Auditor’s Report – Fechter & Company Certified Public  
  Accountants  

It was noted that the Finance Committee had already reviewed the audit report.  Mr. 
Fechter said the audit was very successful.  He said the sale of the hospital building was a 
major event that they determined should be considered during this audit, even though it 
delayed closing the audit.  He discussed pages 1 and 2 of the audit report.  He also 
indicated that it is important that members of the Board understand pages 10 and 11(the 
Balance Sheet and Income Statement or Profit & Loss Statement).  He said the District 
has no debt, has assets and is in a very good financial position.  

Page 67 of 102



Page 2 of 4 
 

There was discussion regarding the Community Health Contracts.  Director Salmon asked 
if the auditing firm could in the future verify for random contract recipients that the funds 
were used as they had indicated they would be used.  Mr. Fechter said he would further 
discuss this with Executive Director Bobbi Palmer.   
Action:  It was moved by Director Salmon, seconded by Director Abbott to approve the 
2016-2017 Audit Report as presented.  Motion carried (5-0). 

 
 

E. REPORTS 
E1. Finance Committee – Committee of the Whole, Chair: Director Mroz 

Chairperson Mroz said the Finance Committee met on November 1st with all Board 
members present except Bill Leach, absent due to illness.  The Committee reviewed the 
financial statements through September 2017.  There were no areas of concern noted.  
Cash in the bank had increased due to the sale of the old hospital building.  Those 
proceeds will be transferred to the Cal-Trust account prior to month-end.  The 2016-2017 
Audit Report was reviewed and the auditors determined the District books were 
represented fairly in all material respects.  An RFP for Urgent Care Services had been 
issued with a response due date of November 30, 2017.  There was discussion regarding 
the LAFCO recommendation from 2015 that a portion of the Fallbrook Regional Health 
District be annexed to Tri-City Health District as it is within the Oceanside City boundary.  
This will be considered by the full Board of Directors. 

E2. Gov’t/Public Relation/Community Relations Committee – Directors Salmon and Tinker 
 No report 
E3. Facilities/Strategic Planning Committee – Directors Abbott and Salmon 

Director Salmon said the committee had met to review the District’s Mission and Vision 
and recommended a workshop prior to year-end to focus on priorities for the next year.  
Discussion ensued regarding the best date for the workshop and a photo for the 
Sourcebook.  The Board determined that Saturday, December 9th would work best.  It will 
begin at 8:00 a.m. and take place at the FRHD office. 

E4. Executive Director – Bobbi Palmer 
Bobbi Palmer thanked Ron Stark and his organization for the presentation at Woman of 
Wellness in November.   
She discussed the upcoming free mammograms offered by Michelle’s Place on Saturday, 
November 18, at the Fallbrook Family Health Center.  FRHD awarded Community Health 
Contracts to both organizations. 
Director Salmon had informed Executive Director Bobbi Palmer that Los Medanos 
Community Healthcare District is being dissolved by LAFCO.  Our Executive Director had 
served in the same capacity at that District for eight years prior to coming to Fallbrook and 
she said she was very upset by that news.  She reviewed the circumstances which 
resulted in the closure of three health Districts in that area of Northern California.  She 
said Districts are not dissolved without considerable conversation and notice, e.g. a 
Municipal Services Report.  With so many District hospitals having closed and healthcare 
in general being in a state of flux, healthcare districts must continue to reinvent 
themselves to fill the unmet healthcare needs in the communities they represent.  She 
reiterated that at the last meeting, she recommended that one of our Board members 
consider seeking a seat on the LAFCO Board.  Without community support for the value 
of services directly or indirectly provided by a health district, health districts are at risk for 
dissolution and the property tax revenue would be rerouted to the County or other 
districts.  Since we are in an unincorporated area of the County that would leave our area 
without direct representation by a locally elected board to assure we have a voice in our 
communities health needs.   

E5. General Counsel – Blaise Jackson 
Legal Counsel Blaise Jackson discussed a California Supreme Court case related to the 
Public Records Act;  ACLU vs. Superior Court of L.A. County.  In question was whether a 

Page 68 of 102



Page 3 of 4 
 

very large recognition software database maintained by police/sheriff departments 
(LAPD/LASO) to identify license plates of vehicles suspected in a crime was subject to the 
Public Records Act and available to the public (noting that the information available would 
not be for those identified in a crime, but all others with private information redacted).  The 
departments rejected the PRA request, and the lower courts had agreed with 
LAPD/LASO.  The Supreme Court reversed, holding that much of the information was not 
necessarily immune from public disclosure.  Legal Counsel said he brought this up to 
illustrate that the court continues to narrowly construe the exceptions to the Public 
Records Act and  give precedence to the public’s right to know.   
 
Legal Counsel said he had received communication from legal counsel for Community 
Health Systems in Tennessee (previous operators of the Fallbrook Hospital) asking about 
putting together language to settle the issue of CHS making repairs to the hospital 
building.  Mr. Jackson said he anticipates bringing a document in that regard to the 
meeting of the board in December.  Any other comments he would confine to Agenda 
Item F2. 
 

F. DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEMS 
  F1. This agenda item was already addressed (prior to Reports). 
 F2. LAFCO Recommended Boundary Change 

Legal Counsel said this matter had been discussed at the last meeting and Director Mroz 
had requested it be postponed to this meeting as Director Abbott had not been present.  
There was also a question regarding how the affected property owners would be notified.  
The extent of notification is limited to the posting of the minutes of the boards making the 
decisions. 
In review, Mr. Jackson said that LAFCO had recommended in its 2015 Municipal Services 
Report that a portion of the Fallbrook Regional Health District be annexed to the Tri-City 
Healthcare District as it is within the Oceanside City boundary.  Tri-City legal counsel had 
contacted Mr. Jackson to let our District know that Tri-City wants to pursue the 
recommended annexation.  This area includes approximately 2,700 acres, represents 3 
percent of our District and a loss of an estimated $55,000 in property tax revenue at the 
present time.  Discussion ensued during which President Tinker asked if there was a way 
to verify the amount of property tax revenue and Legal Counsel said he could contact the 
tax assessor’s office for that; however, he does not believe the reduction of that amount of 
revenue would influence the recommendation by LAFCO.  Mr. Jackson said there are 
three options for FRHD to consider.  A motion to support the annexation requested by Tri-
City Healthcare District, a motion opposing the annexation or no action, which would then 
allow Tri-City to move forward with the recommendation by LAFCO.  Further discussion 
ensued.   
Action:  It was moved by Director Abbott, seconded by Director Salmon to express 
support for the requested annexation of a portion of the Fallbrook Regional Health District 
that is within the Oceanside City boundary to Tri-City Healthcare District as recommended 
by LAFCO.  Motion carried (5-0).   

   
G. ITEMS FOR SUBSEQUENT MEETINGS 
 G1. Other Director/Staff discussion items 
  G1a. Item(s) for future board agendas 

Director Salmon said LYFT had made presentations to the Association of 
California Health Districts regarding non-emergency transportation of patients and 
the possibility of insurance paying for it.  He said he would like that presentation 
available to our board members.  Executive Director Bobbi Palmer said she has 
the LYFT presentation and will make it available.   

  G1b. Announcements of upcoming events: 

Page 69 of 102



Page 4 of 4 
 

• Finance Committee meeting – 1st Wednesday, December 6, 5:00pm, Fallbrook 
Regional Health District Board Room, 138 S. Brandon Rd. 

G2. Next Regular Board meeting – Wednesday, December 13, 2017, Fallbrook Public Utility 
District Board Room 

 
The Board adjourned to Closed Session at 7:02 p.m. 

 

H. CLOSED SESSION 
H1. Personnel Matters Pursuant To Government Code Section 54957 - Evaluation of 

Executive Director 
 

  

I. RETURN TO OPEN SESSION 
The Board reconvened into Open Session at 7:29 p.m. and directed Legal Counsel to meet with 
Executive Director Bobbi Palmer to discuss options over a five-year period. 

 

J. ADJOURNMENT 
 There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 7:30 p.m. 
 
 
      
Gordon Tinker, President 
 
 
 
      
Stephen Abbott, Secretary 

 

Page 70 of 102



Page 71 of 102



Page 72 of 102



Page 73 of 102



Page 74 of 102



Page 75 of 102



Page 76 of 102



Page 77 of 102



Page 78 of 102



Page 79 of 102



Page 80 of 102



Page 81 of 102



Page 82 of 102



Page 83 of 102



Page 84 of 102



Page 85 of 102



Page 86 of 102



Page 87 of 102



Page 88 of 102



Page 89 of 102



Page 90 of 102



Page 91 of 102



Page 92 of 102



Page 93 of 102



Page 94 of 102



Page 95 of 102



Page 96 of 102



Page 97 of 102



Page 98 of 102



Page 99 of 102



Page 100 of 102



Page 101 of 102



Page 102 of 102




